
CHILDREN’S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY 
COUNCIL MEETING  

March 31, 2016, 4:30 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
1. Call to Order 

 

Chair Langowski called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m.   
 

Present:  
Thomas Bean  
Vince Goodman 
Kathleen Kroll 
Greg Langowski  
Thomas E. Lynch 
Thomas P. Weber 
 

Excused: Robert M. Avossa, Ed.D.; Dennis Miles; Debra Robinson, M.D.; Shelley Vana  
 

A. Invocation – led by Vince Goodman  
B. Pledge of Allegiance – led by Chair Langowski 
C. Presentations  

 
1.  BRIDGES 5 Year Profile  – LaNita Sanders, Program Performance Officer 

 
LaNita Sanders, Program Performance Officer stated that Bonnie Wagner, Research and 
Evaluation Analyst had been unable to attend and that she had contributed greatly to the 
presentation. She also recognized the attendance of many BRIDGES staff in the audience.  
She stated that Council members had a copy of the PowerPoint presentation and an 
addendum at their places. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that CSC had envisioned BRIDGES as a holistic, long term strategy to 
improve child outcomes.  She stated that it had been designed to serve as a trusted 
community presence and universal connector of many isolated services.  She stated that the 
current presentation was a milestone along a 12 to 15 year continuum.  She stated that 
there would be progress in some indicators, and that it would take a little longer to affect 
change for other indicators, considering the range of personal, social, economic and 
environmental determinants in play.  She stated that the pace and responsiveness to change 
varied from neighborhood to neighborhood.  She stated that it was important to remember 
that data was being captured from a very small subset of the population, just a few blocks of 
a census track.  She stated that the data was for 1,300 families and not more than 4,000 
people.  She stated that the number of families with children ages 0 to 8 was even smaller 
within those areas.  She stated that a more in‐depth evaluation was scheduled for the future 
which would uncover many of the causes and effects of the data anomalies. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that BRIDGES was a community hub designed to support connections 
between organizations and residents in ten targeted neighborhoods.  She stated that the 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  2 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

neighborhoods had been identified because of the issues that had occurred over the years 
with maternal child health.  She stated that BRIDGES served as a support for optimal child 
development, parenting, and neighborhood capacity building, and did so by bridging the 
traditional gaps in programming. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that since its inception in 2011, BRIDGES has served over 5,000 families 
with children ages 0 to 8, and had touched over 18,000 members of Palm Beach County.  She 
stated that in the BRIDGES neighborhoods there was a disparity whereby single parent 
families with children under age 6 exceeded the rest of Palm Beach County (in this subset) by 
16%.  She stated that the median income in these neighborhoods was considerably less than 
that of Palm Beach County as a whole ($26,512 compared to $57,700).  She stated that 
unemployment in the BRIDGES neighborhoods was almost double the rate of the rest of 
Palm Beach County (19% vs. 10%), and in some particular neighborhoods the rate of 
unemployment was even higher.  She stated that there were a large number of families in 
the BRIDGES neighborhoods where there was no one in the family over the age of 14 that 
spoke English well, as compared to Palm Beach County as a whole. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that the racial makeup of the neighborhoods showed that 53% of 
residents were Black or African American compared to 17% for Palm Beach County as a 
whole.  She stated that the Hispanic and Latino population was comparable to Palm Beach 
County as a whole (23% vs. 20%).  She stated that several communities, especially in the Lake 
Worth area, had a greater concentration of Hispanic/Latino with over 50% of residents in this 
category. 
 
Ms. Sanders examined the child outcome of the promotion of healthy births within the 
BRIDGES neighborhoods.  She stated that BRIDGES had touched over 1,000 pregnant women 
and had referred nearly 400 of those women to Healthy Beginnings services.  She stated that 
low birthweight babies were those born under 5½ pounds, and the rate of babies born at this 
weight in BRIDGES neighborhoods was comparable to the county’s rate (8.8% vs. 8.5%).  She 
stated that preterm babies were those babies born at less than 37 weeks, and births in the 
BRIDGES communities had a higher rate of incidence than Palm Beach County as a whole 
(16% vs. 13%). 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that BRIDGES partners with many other community agencies, both CSC‐
funded and others available in the community, for service provision.  She stated that the only 
direct service that BRIDGES provided was Triple P (Positive Parenting Program).  She stated 
that BRIDGES had measured over 2,000 parents who had participated in Triple P.  She stated 
that BRIDGES also addressed safety issues, and partnered with Safe Kids to provide car seat 
installation and safety.  She stated that BRIDGES provided many workshops dealing with a 
myriad of issues that families faced concerning the health and safety of their children.  
 
Ms. Sanders stated that 2/3 of children between ages 0‐5 in BRIDGES neighborhoods had 
received one or more ASQ‐3 (Ages and Stages Questionnaire). She stated that the ASQ 
helped to identify developmental issues.  She stated that there had been 15% of children 
scoring with a concern and they had been referred to the Healthy Beginnings system.  She 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  3 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

stated that once in the Healthy Beginnings system it was determined whether further testing 
or screening were needed, or whether intervention was needed.  She stated that almost 
2,000 children in the BRIDGES system had access to child care as a result of CSC scholarships.  
She stated that many BRIDGES, in partnership with their local schools or community 
agencies, offered Kindergarten readiness programs.  She stated that they also offered 
parent‐child activities where parents and children could spend time together on 
developmentally‐appropriate activities, and, in many instances, it was the first time a parent 
had played with their child. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that each BRIDGES location had a linkage elementary school they worked 
closely with.  She stated that together, they had developed an early childhood leadership 
collaborative where they brought together other community stakeholders to work 
collaboratively to resolve issues around Kindergarten readiness.  She showed a graph where 
the BRIDGES lagged behind the county in Kindergarten readiness scores, although they were 
slowly improving since 2007.  She stated that in 2014 data had not been available from the 
School District so a gap remained.  She stated that in 2015 the measurement instrument had 
been changed.  She stated that in 2015 almost 90% of kindergarteners in BRIDGES 
communities were ready for school. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that 766 families had attended the BRIDGES summer reading program.  
She stated that the program had been in operation for the past three years, and had initially 
been supported by the Early Childhood Cabinet in partnership with the School District.  She 
stated that the program included working with parents to teach new strategies for them to 
work with their children at home, to help increase their love of learning and to help grow 
their linguistic capacity.  She stated that they also included a reading log to chart how many 
hours they were reading, and the parents were actually engaged in the reading activities.  
She stated that it took place for approximately 6 weeks in the summer, and at the conclusion 
they had a large celebration.  She stated that BRIDGES also partners with literary 
organizations, specifically the libraries, and they had over 1,000 families attend library 
programs since 2014.  She stated that over 600 families had attended school‐related 
workshops. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that BRIDGES worked directly with parents because there were very few 
opportunities when they could be hands‐on with just the children.  She stated that BRIDGES 
build a parent’s capacity to be a more effective parent, to be more engaged and involved in 
their child’s education.  She showed data regarding reading on grade level by third grade, 
and stated that there was a 23% difference between the county as a whole reading on grade 
level, to those BRIDGES families (51% for the county vs. 27% for BRIDGES third graders). 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that many families attending BRIDGES were dealing with a multitude of 
issues, and as a result, BRIDGES provides access to services.  She stated that without 
BRIDGES many families would never know that the community programs existed, and they 
would not know how to access them.  She stated that BRIDGES provided transportation  
vouchers for the families, and was able to link them with CareerSource and other community 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  4 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

college programs, computer and technology classes, and ESOL classes through the School 
District. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that when the BRIDGES families received all the support they needed, 
they then turned around and took advantage of opportunities to give back.  She stated that 
many BRIDGES parents conducted workshops for other parents acting as mentors  
and ambassadors to other parents.  She stated that they served as community advocates and 
on the Boards of other nonprofit agencies in the community.  She stated that these parents 
were building their own capacity, while at the same time giving back to their community.  
 
A video testimonial of actual BRIDGES families was played.  Ms. Sanders thanked Jon 
Burstein and the Communications department for their help in producing the testimonial.  
She invited Council members to visit the BRIDGES sites for a tour and the opportunity to see 
BRIDGES staff at work with the families.  She stated that Council members would be 
surprised at all the work that was accomplished in a very small space with a handful of staff. 
  
Vince Goodman stated that he had been impressed at the number of men featured in the 
testimonial.  He asked what percentage of third grade Hispanic students could read on grade 
level compared to Black students.  Ms. Sanders stated that she did not have the answer 
readily available because the data came from the School District, and that she would be 
happy to forward the information. Mr. Goodman asked Ms. Sanders how they coordinated 
reports from the School District with CSC data.  Ms. Sanders stated that CSC had a research 
and evaluation department at CSC, and that there were data sharing agreements with the 
School District, so they were able to pull data from various sources.  She stated that Bonnie 
Wagner, Research and Evaluation Analyst had been very diligent in synthesizing all the data, 
and presented the Program Officers with quarterly reports.   
 
Mr. Goodman asked what they did with the data once it was collected.  Ms. Sanders stated 
that they tried to be intentional about the data they collected, and the information was 
reported back to the BRIDGES directors so that they were constantly informed about what 
was happening in their community.  She stated that in this way they could know what the 
general makeup of their community was, and if there were changes.  She stated that they 
could inform BRIDGES of specific initiatives being implemented by the School District and 
had recently provided all BRIDGES with the attendance records of their linkage schools.  She  
stated that the BRIDGES were geared up to work with parents about the importance of 
children attending school on‐time, and every day.  She stated that when the presentation 
was made they would be able to see what attendance looked like for their specific school, 
according to grade level.  She stated that they could collectively come up with strategies how 
to improve attendance, and work towards continuous improvement.  She stated that they 
could provide more information if required.  Mr. Goodman asked what the BRIDGES did with 
the information once they received it.  Ms. Sanders stated that they made changes.  Lisa 
Williams‐Taylor, Ph.D. stated that they could work with them on different initiatives and 
planning, addressing the identified needs in the community.  She stated that there were 
dialogue groups entitled Strong Starts for Young Children who shared the data with the 
families, and the families themselves, working with the BRIDGES and community partners 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  5 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

came up with initiatives and things they wanted to implement in their own communities.  
She stated that CSC had the data, the BRIDGES had the data, the families had the data, and 
all were working together to move the outcomes for young children.  She stated that the 
data was actively being used at all different levels. 
 
Ms. Sanders stated that there was a BRIDGES director with a fatherhood initiative at his site, 
and he had provided the fathers with the statistics about the importance of a father’s 
engagement and involvement.  She stated that by educating the fathers of the difference 
that just twenty minutes per day of father involvement made in the academic career of their 
child had spurred them into making changes at home with their families.  She stated that the 
data was very valuable if used for the purpose of continuous improvement.  If a  
BRIDGES site offered a particular program they could look at the program’s attendance, 
whether there were any trends, and evaluate the family surveys to determine whether the 
program was meeting the needs of the family.  Mr. Goodman asked whether the BRIDGES 
worked with students who were challenged.  Ms. Sanders stated that Triple P worked with 
families who had behavior issues.  She stated that BRIDGES did not work directly with the 
child to address issues but rather with the parent. 
 
Keith Oswald from the School District stated that the School District controlled data by Race 
and Gender, and at the third grade level: 

 Hispanic females were reading at 48% of grade level 

 Black females were reading at 41% of grade level 

 Hispanic males were reading at 40% of grade level 

 Black males were reading at 27% of grade level. 
Mr. Goodman asked whether these were average scores or low scores.  Mr. Oswald stated 
that the scores were not good. 
 
Judge Kathleen Kroll referred to the PowerPoint and asked whether they knew why the 
decrease in grade level reading happened from 2010 to 2011 (from 69% in 2010 to 55% in 
2011 for the County, and from 46% in 2010 to 32% in 2011 for BRIDGES).  Dr. Williams‐Taylor 
stated that a different tool had been used; the third grade reading went from FCAT to FCAT‐
2.  Keith Oswald stated that it had been a new assessment and new standards. 
 
Tom Lynch stated that the School District had formerly been spending from $30 to $35 
million per year on the Kindergarten through third grade reading program and reading 90 
minutes per day, and asked whether the School District still had the same program in effect.  
Mr. Oswald stated that they still had the K‐2 initiative model, but with class size reduction 
they didn’t use those dollars in the same way as they were used in the past.  Mr. Lynch 
stated that they had gained from 10 to 12 points per year using that model, although it was 
very expensive. 
 

2.  Minutes 
 

A. February 25, 2016 Council Meeting   
 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  6 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

A motion by Weber/Lynch to approve the Minutes of the February 25, 2016 Council meeting as 
presented was approved by unanimous vote. 

 

3. Public Comment – Agenda Items  
 

4. Council Committees: 
 

A. Finance Committee 
 

Tom Lynch stated that the Finance Committee had met prior to the Council meeting and had 
approved the Finance Committee Minutes from the February 25th Finance Committee meeting.  
He stated that they had conducted a budget workshop March 10th and recommended approval 
of the Financial Statements of February 29, 2016.  He stated that the Finance Committee had 
looked at more than 15 budget scenarios and at the April 28 Planning Session would be 
recommending changes in the budget as follows: 

 Increase the Millage Rate from .6677 to .6865 which would net several hundreds of 
thousands of dollars to be used on children’s programs; 

 An increase of 8% in the tax base was projected; 

 The Fund Balance had been set at an arbitrary 30% of the budget; they would 
recommend it be reduced to 27.5%; 

 Procurement policy to be changed from a limit of $1,000 to $5,000; 

 Investment policy was reviewed and it had been determined that it was still timely. 
Mr. Sheehan stated that there would be an Agenda Item at the April Council meeting to formally 
approve the increased spending threshold, amending CSC’s procurement policy. 
 
A motion by Goodman/Bean to approve the February 29, 201с Fiƴancial Statements and 
Finance Committee Minutes of February 25, 2016 was approved by unanimous vote. 
 

B. Personnel Committee – no report 
 

5.  Consent Agenda 
 

1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions ‐ none 
 

 
2. Items to be Pulled for Discussion – Agenda item 5A(2) (Reference #3) and 5B(3) (Reference 
  #6) were pulled for discussion purposes. 
 
3. Adoption of the Consent Agenda and Walk‐in Warrants List 
 

A motion by Bean/Lynch to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of agenda 
items 5A(2) and 5B(3), and approve the Walk‐in Warrants list was approved by unanimous 
vote. 
 

A. Program 
 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  7 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

1. Resolution #16‐010 Authorizing an Increase in Allocation for Nutrition Services for Women/ 
Families – Approved by Consent 
 

2. Urban League of Palm Beach County – Performance Improvement Plan  

 
Tom Lynch stated that the Urban League had been under corrective action previously and it 
seemed that the agency was not improving at the expected level.  He stated that since 
assessments were performed three times per year he asked whether CSC should do 
something different because this agency had a repeat problem.  Vashti Rutledge, Program 
Officer, stated that the improvement plan on which the Urban League was placed dated 
back one year previously.  She stated that when they had reviewed the 6‐month CPPA for 
the 2014‐15 year there had been concerns with the program implementation.  She stated 
that the concerns had been around the timing and sequencing on how the program was 
being implemented.  She stated that they had met with leadership at that time, and after 
having given them an improvement plan, at the conclusion of the program year they had 
made substantial improvements.  She stated that Urban League had been able to rise to the 
level where they met high fidelity standards for the implementation of clubs across the 
board. 
 
Ms. Rutledge stated that although programs were reviewed intermittently across the 
contract year it was a cumulative process.  She stated that items identified at the beginning 
of the contract year remain showing at the end of the contract year, despite having been 
fixed.  She stated that in the case of Urban League there had been disallowances/repeat 
findings with regard to their audit which had impacted their CPPA score.  She stated that 
there had been agency turnover which had impacted the CPPA score.  She stated that there 
had been items that did not directly affect the program participants, but that CSC felt it was 
important to continue to monitor.  She stated that they had wanted to give Urban League 
the opportunity to continue to show improvement which they had achieved from the first 
performance improvement plan. 
 
Mr. Lynch asked about the concerns regarding the ongoing administrative functioning and 
asked whether the last quarter evaluated was really good.  Ms. Rutledge stated that the last 
quarter evaluated was the end of the program year.  She stated that they were imminently 
about to embark upon a new CPPA.  She stated that they would look at the first six months 
of the contract year, oftentimes because during the first quarter there was startup and it 
was difficult to get a good sense of where they were.  She stated that the program 
implementation was going well, and there had recently been a member from the national 
Wyman team in town to do the certification.  She stated that the individual had performed 
site visits at all sites, had reviewed files, and all sites had excelled, with CSC being renewed 
as a partner. 
 
Ms. Rutledge stated that with the upcoming CPPA they would continue to look at the 
program implementation, but they would also be checking on the administrative 
components to ensure that the monitoring and oversight continued to happen.  She stated 
that they had met with the CEO of Urban League and had been assured that they were 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  8 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

taking it seriously, and had performed a review of their processes to ensure not only that 
they were in compliance with CSC, but that they reviewed strategies for their other 
processes, which are not CSC‐funded. 
 
Mr. Lynch asked how much a 5% penalty was.  Ms. Rutledge stated that it was 5% of one 
twelfth of the total contract of $330,000; $330,000 divided by 12 = $27,500/mo, @ 5% = 
$1,375.00.  Mr. Lynch stated that he was reluctant to financially penalize a provider because 
if they were taking care of the children then a portion of funding was removed, the children 
would get reduced care/attention.  He stated that the penalty was because they hadn’t done 
the fire inspection which was an issue regarding life/health/safety.  He suggested instead of 
giving a monetary penalty there should be something else done.  Ms. Rutledge stated that 
they had, in fact, completed the fire inspection, but that the inspection had come back with 
necessary immediate repairs, and although they had performed the repairs in a timely 
manner they had not completed the necessary paperwork in a timely manner.  She stated 
that for CSC’s part they wanted to emphasize how important it was to follow the contract 
and guidelines set therein, and not constantly making allowances with exceptions.  Mr. 
Lynch stated that in the case of a fire inspection problem, assessing a penalty doesn’t do 
anything.  He stated that it should be mandatory to act upon the findings quickly to avoid 
CSC being put into a liability situation.  Tom Sheehan, General Counsel, stated that they 
were in the process of looking at the 5% penalty policy for documentation issues.  He stated 
that they expected to have a recommendation on this matter before the start of the 16/17 
contract year effective October 1.  He stated that it was originally intended to get an 
agency’s attention, and they now planned to determine a better way to do it, recognizing 
that fire inspections or insurance may not be the same as some of the other documentation 
requirements, and there may be different timing on those. 
 
For informational purposes only; no action required. 

 
B. Business 

 
1. Warrants List – Approved by Consent 

 
2. Proclamation Declaring April 2016 as Child Abuse Prevention Month – Approved by Consent 
 
3. Resolution #16‐011 Authorizing an Agreement to Furnish and Install Trane Chiller HVAC 

System 
 

Chair Langowski asked about the air chiller warranty.  Robert Kurimski, Chief Technology 
Officer stated that there was a one‐year all‐inclusive parts and labor warranty, with a five 
year warranty on the compressor, for parts and refrigerant. 
 
Chair Langowski stated that installation would take place after hours and asked how long it 
was expected to take.  Mike Modica, Head of Facilities stated that it was expected to take 2 
to 3 days and would be scheduled for the Memorial Day weekend in order to give a third 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  9 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

day, if necessary.  Mr. Langowski asked how old the current unit was.  Mr. Modica stated 
that it was 9½ years old, as old as the building. 
 
A motion by Weber/Lynch to approve Resolution #16‐011 authorizing the Chief Executive 
Officer to enter into an agreement with Trane U.S., Inc. under U.S. Communities #40‐
668434‐16‐001 contract #15‐JLP‐023 in an amount not to exceed $260,694, effective April 
1, 2016 through September 30, 2016 was approved by unanimous vote. 
 

6.  Non Consent Agenda 
 

A. Business – N/A 
 

B. For Informational Purposes Only – N/A 
 

7.  Walk‐In Items – N/A 
 
8.  Chief Executive Officer’s Report 

 
1. Birth to 22 

 
Lisa Williams‐Taylor, Ph.D. stated that in 2012 a Youth Symposium had been conducted, a joint 
effort between CSC, the School District, United Way, CareerSource, and the County 
Commission.  She stated that it had been rebranded and was now called Birth to 22 – United for 
Brighter Futures.  She stated that they had been working with the Forum for Youth Investment 
to come up with a master plan.  She stated that they were having community conversations as 
part of the master plan.  She stated that the community conversations were facilitated 
conversations in various areas of the community, whether it was from community stakeholders, 
families, or children, to really understand what the needs of the community were.  She stated 
that Council members had pictures at their places of the community conversations, and a 
schedule of future conversations.  She invited Council members to attend and stated that she 
had heard great things about them.  She stated that there had been four community 
conversations so far, the one in Riviera Beach had attendance of over 100 made up of 
providers, community leaders, parents, and youth.  She stated that the conversation in Delray 
Beach had 132 attendees, 54 of which were students.  She stated that the Lake Worth 
conversation had 61 attendees, 36 of which were students, and the FAU conversation had 24 
attendees, 12 of which were students. She stated that the youth were leading table 
conversations and volunteering, and that it was a great collaboration between organizations 
and the communities. 
 
Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that as part of the youth master planning process, due to be 
completed towards the end of summer, it was expected that there would be some 
recommendations from the youth master plan to be brought forward to the Council, with 
needs identified in which the Council may want to invest. 
 

2. Communications Update 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  10 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

 
Palm Beach Unites Event – Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that Council members had a flyer at their 
places regarding this event and encouraged attendance.  She stated that it was a group of 
different leaders coming together April 7, 2016 from 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. to kick off Child 
Abuse Prevention Month.  She stated that the pinwheels in the front planter of CSC were to 
recognize Child Abuse Prevention Month. 
 
SafeMap App – Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that Council members had cards at their places 
regarding the SafeMap App.  She encouraged Council members to ask for more of them to 
distribute if they had the opportunity.  She stated that the App was for IPhones and gave 
locations for car seat fittings, swim lessons, pill drop off, and bicycle helmet fittings.  She stated 
that they were looking into creating an App for Android phones. 
 
Michael Roedel, Digital Communications Administrator stated that they had launched CSC’s first 
App entitled SafeMap, and that it was available for free from the Apple App store.  A video was 
shown demonstrating usage of the App.  Mr. Roedel stated that they were raising awareness 
about the App through multiple channels including advertising on social media, radio spots, the 
video shown, and App cards.  He asked Council members to distribute the App cards to anyone 
who could benefit from the App. 
 
Tom Lynch asked when the Android App would be completed.  Mr. Roedel stated that they had 
launched the SafeMap App for IPhones just two weeks previously, and they would begin to 
explore an Android App, looking for a developer to mirror the current App.  Mr. Lynch asked 
whether it would be done by the summer.  Mr. Roedel stated that it was not yet determined 
and that he would provide that information when available. 
 
Chair Langowski asked whether there was a poster to display at community events.  Mr. Roedel 
referred to a poster on display and stated that it was available for all community events.  He 
stated that there were also App cards available, and individuals available to demonstrate the 
App at events. 
 
Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that the App had been launched that day at a water safety event 
which had had great attendance.  She stated that the Sun Sentinel, the Palm Beach Post, 
Channel 5 and Channel 10 had also been there. 
 
Spotlight on Providers ‐ Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that CSC had contracted with Channel 12 for 
two minute videos of CSC providers, in recognition of CSC’s 30th anniversary.  A video of two 
providers was shown.  She stated that the videos would be aired beginning the following week. 
 
Happily Ever After Begins With Reading Campaign ‐ Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that an 
additional 110,000 books had been ordered which would be delivered to the traditional schools 
and charter schools in Palm Beach County the week of May 2nd.  She stated that with these 
additional books CSC will have delivered more than 500,000 books to school children since the 
fall of 2013.  She stated that they would be working with the School District regarding media 
events to highlight the book giveaway. 



Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach County 
March 31, 2016 Council Meeting  
Page:  11 

160331 Minutes.doc 

 

 
Promotion of Summer Reading ‐ Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that Council members had copies of 
posters at their places for the promotion of summer reading, a campaign which would be 
undertaken with the help of the BRIDGES in order to avoid the summer reading slide. 

 
3. Recognition of Michelle Abarca 
 
  Dr. Williams‐Taylor stated that Program Officer Michelle Abarca had been recognized in the Sea 
  Star magazine as mentor of a foster child.  She thanked Ms. Abarca for her good work. 

 
9.  Legal Reports  
 

1. April 28, 2016 Annual Planning Session – 4:00 p.m. 
 
Tom Sheehan, General Counsel stated that April’s Council meeting would be preceded by the 
annual Planning Session.  He stated that the Planning Session would be from 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 
p.m., and would be followed immediately by the Council meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. TRIM dates for September, 2016 
 
Mr. Sheehan stated that they had received notification from the Property Appraiser’s Office of 
the dates scheduled for TRIM for the County and School District.  He stated that now the TRIM 
dates of those entities were known, CSC was able to schedule its own TRIM dates in September.  
He asked Council members to hold the second and fourth Thursday in September, September 
8th and September 22nd for Council and TRIM meetings.  He stated that they anticipated the 
time for the TRIM hearings to be 6:00 p.m., and that Council meetings would be directly prior to 
the TRIM hearings and thus would not begin at the usual time of 4:30 p.m.  He stated that the 
exact start time of the Council meetings would be given to Council members in the coming 
months. 

 
10.  Individual Appearances – Non‐Agenda Items – N/A 
 
11.  Council Comments  
 
  Chair Langowski reminded Council members that relationship scans would be conducted in early 
  April by Judy Goodman.  He stated that Senior Executive Assistant Elsa Sanchez had sent out an 
  email to this effect.  He encouraged Council members to participate and to contact Elsa  to schedule  
  a meeting with Ms. Goodman, which could be in person or by telephone. 

 
Thomas Bean stated that there would be an event at the Palm Beach County Convention Center 
that weekend which was the first Robotics South Florida Regional Competition.  He stated that it 
was scheduled for Friday, April 1st and Saturday, April 2nd, and was free to the public.  He thanked 
the School District for helping Lakeshore Middle School take kids to see the competition because 
they were looking into starting a robotics academy at that school.  He stated that he highly 
recommended going to see the competition because the competitors were very vociferous, and 







Children’s Services Council 
 


Finance Committee Meeting 
 


Thursday, April 28, 2016, 3:30 p.m. 
 
 


AGENDA / MINUTES 
 
 
Welcome and introductions 
 
  Finance Committee Members: 
  Tom Lynch, CSC Finance Committee Chair  


Thomas Bean, CSC Finance Committee Vice‐chair 
  Greg Langowski, Chair Children’s Services Council 
  Tom Weber, Vice Chair Children’s Services Council 
  Paul Dumar, Director Financial Services, Solid Waste Authority  
  John Marino, Volunteer 
 
  CSC Staff: 
  Lisa Williams‐Taylor, CEO 
  Jen Diehl, CFO 
  Tom Sheehan, General Counsel  
  Elsa Sanchez, Senior Executive Assistant 
 
Agenda Items: 
 


1 Minutes March 31, 2016 
2 March 31, 2016 Financial Statements 
3 CSC Budget Forecast 2016‐2017 through 2020‐2021 
4 CSC Proposed 2016‐2017 Operating Budget Detail 
5 Other 
6 Adjournment 


 
Next Meeting: May 26, 2016 
 
   
 


1







Children’s Services Council 
 


Finance Committee Meeting 
 


Thursday, March 31, 2016, 4:00 p.m. 
 
 


AGENDA / MINUTES 
 
Welcome and introductions 
 
  Finance Committee Members: 
  Tom Lynch, CSC Finance Committee Chair, Present 


Thomas Bean, CSC Finance Committee Vice‐chair, Arrived 4:20 
  Greg Langowski, Chair Children’s Services Council, Present 
  Tom Weber, Vice Chair Children’s Services Council, Present 
  Paul Dumars, Director Financial Services, Solid Waste Authority, Not Present 
  John Marino, Volunteer, Present 
 
  CSC Staff: 
  Lisa Williams‐Taylor, CEO, Present 


Bill Cosgrove, CFO, Present 
  Jen Diehl, Controller, Present 
  Tom Sheehan, General Counsel, Present 
  Elsa Sanchez, Senior Executive Assistant, Present 
  Tanya Palmer, Chief Program Officer, Present 
 
Agenda Items: 
 


1 Minutes February 25, 2016, Unanimously Approved 
2 Budget Workshop Summary (March 10, 2016), Summary provided 
3 February 29, 2016 Financial Statements, Unanimously Approved 
4 Budget Scenario 2016‐2017, Unanimously decided to update scenario with .6865 


millage which provides the opportunity for sustained children’s programs, needed 
growth and newly identified community needs 


5 Investment Policy Review, Discussed term of Investment Advisor’s contract and 
decided to maintain current investment policy 


6 Procurement Policy Update, Unanimously Approved recommendation to Council of 
$5,000 “no quote” spending threshold 


7 Fund Balance Policy Amendment, Unanimously Approved floor of 27.5% of the total 
budget 


8 Other 
9 Adjournment 


2







AGENDA ITEM:  2 
 
TITLE:                            Financial Statements – March 31, 2016 
      (Unaudited) 
 
STAFF:                           Jennifer Diehl, Controller, Children’s Services Council of Palm Beach 


County 


 


SUMMARY: 


 


The financial statements are presented reflecting the estimated operating results of the 
General Fund and Special Revenue Fund (Prevention Partnerships for Children, Inc.) for the 
six months ended March 31, 2016.  The audit of the Council for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2015 has been completed and the applicable figures represent audited 
numbers. 


Balance Sheet: 


As of March 31, 2016 the Council had $98,035,582 in cash and investments.  Of this balance, 
$30,000,000, net of unamortized discounts and premiums, was held in federal government 
bonds, $63,200,779 was held in a public funds money market account, and $150,853 was 
held in the Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Prime Advisory Fund #8341.  The 
remainder of the funds was on deposit in the Council’s operating accounts. 
 
The Capital Assets and the Investment in Capital Assets for $19,554,398 represent the costs 
associated with furniture and fixtures, equipment, and building costs. 
 
Statement of Revenue and Expenses: 
 
The budgeted expenditure rate at March 31, 2016 is 50%. The estimated expenditure rate 
for Children’s Programs at March 31, 2016 is 44.05% 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 


I recommend the Finance Committee propose that the Council accept the March 31, 2016 
Financial Statements as submitted. 
 


3







CHILDREN'S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY


BALANCE SHEET (Unaudited)


March 31, 2016


General Fund Total All Funds


Assets


Cash & Investments 98,022,650$               12,932$                      98,035,582$               
Accounts Receivable 1,777,653                   -                              1,777,653                   
Interest Receivable 28,927                        -                              28,927                        
Advances to Agencies 4,778,413                   -                              4,778,413                   
Prepaid Expenses 315,077                      -                              315,077                      
Due From - General Fund -                              285,575                      285,575                      
Capital Assets 19,554,398               -                             19,554,398                


Total Assets 124,477,118             298,507                     124,775,625              


Liabilities & Fund Balance


Liabilities


Allocations to Children's Services Programs 9,894,826                   298,507                      10,193,333                 
Deferred Revenue 250,000                      -                              250,000                      
Accounts Payable 225,582                      -                              225,582                      
Due to - Special Revenue Fund 285,575                    -                       285,575                     


Total Liabilities 10,655,983               298,507                     10,954,490                


Fund Balance


Nonspendable:
    Prepaid Expenses 315,077                      -                              315,077                      
Assigned:
   Reserved in accordance with fund balance policy 33,491,795                 -                              33,491,795                 
Unassigned: 60,459,865               -                             60,459,865                


Total Fund Balance 94,266,737               -                       94,266,737                


Investment in Capital Assets 19,554,398               -                             19,554,398                


Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 124,477,118$            298,507$                    124,775,625$            


Special Revenue Fund


Prevention Partnership for 
Children, Inc.


4







CHILDREN'S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE


FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2016


Approved Budget Actual Approved Budget Actual Approved Budget Actual


2015/2016 Through Through Variance % 2015/2016 Through Through Variance % 2015/2016 Through Through Variance %


Budget 3/31/2016 3/31/2016 YTD YTD Budget 3/31/2016 3/31/2016 YTD YTD Budget 3/31/2016 3/31/2016 YTD YTD


Revenues


Ad Valorem Property Taxes 102,176,959$    90,309,638$    90,309,638$      -$                  88.39% -$                  -$                -$                    -$                       0.00% 102,176,959$    90,309,638$    90,309,638$      -$                  88.39%


Interest Income 300,000             150,000           258,669             108,669         86.22% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 300,000             150,000           258,669             108,669         86.22%


Unrealized Gain or Loss -                         -                      66,878               66,878           100.00% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% -                         -                      66,878               66,878           100.00%


Department of Health/Agency 


     for Health Care Administration 3,630,806          1,815,403        2,631,547          816,144         72.48% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 3,630,806          1,815,403        2,631,547          816,144         72.48%


Palm Beach County Head Start Match 3,100,000          1,550,000        1,550,000          -                    50.00% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 3,100,000          1,550,000        1,550,000          -                    50.00%


JPB Foundation 250,000             -                  -                         -                    0.00% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 250,000             -                      -                         -                    0.00%


Income from Tenants 70,000               35,000             37,685               2,685             53.84% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 70,000               35,000             37,685               2,685             53.84%


Other Income 100,000             50,000             121,840             71,840           121.84% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 100,000             50,000             121,840             71,840           121.84%


Cash Carryforward 14,843,281        -                      -                         -                    0.00% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 14,843,281        -                      -                         -                    0.00%


Total Revenues 124,471,046      93,910,041      94,976,257        1,066,216      76.30% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 124,471,046      93,910,041      94,976,257        1,066,216      76.30%


Expenditures


Administrative Expenditures 5,342,146          2,671,073        2,573,532          97,541           48.17% -                    -                  752                 (752)                   100.00% 5,342,146          2,671,073        2,574,284          96,789           48.19%


Capital Expenditures 250,000             125,000           128,360             (3,360)           51.34% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 250,000             125,000           128,360             (3,360)           51.34%


Contingency 500,000             -                  -                         -                    0.00% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 500,000             -                      -                         -                    0.00%


Non-Operating Expenses 2,801,919          2,187,463        2,187,463          -                    78.07% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 2,801,919          2,187,463        2,187,463          -                    78.07%


Reserve for Uncollectible Taxes 5,108,848          -                  -                         -                    0.00% -                    -                  -                      -                         0.00% 5,108,848          -                      -                         -                    0.00%


Children's Services Programs:


Direct Services:


Funded Programs & Initiatives 98,014,091        49,007,046      42,897,695        6,109,351      43.77% 2,682,701      1,341,351   1,152,346       189,005              42.95% 100,696,792      50,348,396      44,050,041        6,298,355      43.75%


Support Services:


Programmatic Support 9,771,341          4,885,671        4,613,018          272,652         47.21% -                    -              -                      -                         0.00% 9,771,341          4,885,671        4,613,018          272,652         47.21%


Total Children's Programs 107,785,432      53,892,716      47,510,713        6,382,003      44.08% 2,682,701      1,341,351   1,152,346       189,005              42.95% 110,468,133      55,234,067      48,663,059        6,571,007      44.05%


Total Expenses 121,788,345      58,876,252      52,400,068        6,476,184      43.03% 2,682,701      1,341,351   1,153,098       188,253              42.98% 124,471,046      60,217,603      53,553,166        6,664,437      43.02%


Excess Revenues over Expenses 42,576,189        (1,153,098)      41,423,091        


Other Financing Sources (Uses)


Transfers in (out) (2,682,701)         (1,341,351)      (1,153,098)         (188,253)       42.98% 2,682,701      670,675      1,153,098       (482,423)            42.98% -                         -                      -                         -                    0.00%


Net Changes in Fund Balances 41,423,091        -                      41,423,091        


Fund Balances


October 1, 2015 52,843,646        -                      52,843,646        


March 31, 2016 94,266,737$      -$                    94,266,737$      


General Fund Special Revenue Fund Total


Prevention Partnership for Children, Inc.


5







CHILDREN’S SERVICES COUNCIL – FINANCE COMMITTEE 


AGENDA ITEM 


April 28, 2016 
 


 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:    3 
 


TITLE:  Budget Forecast 2016/17‐2020/2021 
 


CSC STAFF:  Jen Diehl, Controller 
 


SUMMARY: 
 


In preparation for the Planning Session on April 28, 2016, an updated budget forecast is 


being presented for your review.  This forecast is based on the discussion held at the 


Finance Committee meeting in March 2016. 
 


There are assumptions that are constant for both the Expenditures and Revenues.  Those 
assumptions are: 


 


Expenditures 
 


Allocations to Children’s Programs and Initiatives will be at the level necessary to sustain the 


children’s programs and support needed growth and newly identified community needs.   


The budgeted number of staff will remain constant at 104. 
 


Merit increases in salaries are budgeted at 3% per year. 


Promotional increases in salaries are budgeted at .5% per year. 


Health insurance costs will increase at the rate of 10% per year. 


Costs associated with facility operations will increase at 3% per year. 


Computer equipment will be replaced in 2016/17. 


 


Revenues 


The proposed millage rate for 2016/2017 will be .6865 as discussed at the Finance 


Committee meeting in March 2016.   


Income from Palm Beach County will reduce $1,000,000 per year until FY 2018‐19 when CSC 


is providing the entire local match for the Head Start program. 


6







The fund balance will continue to be drawn down until the balance reaches 27.5% of the 


annual budget as provided for in the recently revised Council’s fund balance policy. 
 


CSC will continue to experience a projected under expenditure rate of 5% of the total budget. 
The 5% under expenditure will revert to the fund balance. 


 


RECOMMENDATION: 
 


We recommend that this Forecast be used for purposes of discussing the budget, policy briefs 
and council interests during the budget workshop portion of the planning session and also be 
used to support the revenue and expenditure assumptions made in preparing the Proposed 
CSC 16/17 annual operating budget. 


7







Children's Services Council of Palm Beach County


Budget Forecast 2015/2016 ‐ 2020/2021


Tax base increases 8% in 16/17, 4% in 17/18 and 3% every year after


Under expenditure rate is projected at 5%


Targeted fund balance is 27.5% of the total budget


Fiscal Year Total PBC Tax Base Millage Rate


CSC Ad Valorem 


Revenue


Other 


Funders/Income


Revenue from 


Fund Balance Total CSC Budget


Balance in Fund 


Balance  27.5% of Budget


2015/16 153,028,244,853 0.6677 102,176,959 7,450,806 14,843,281 124,471,046 44,223,917 34,229,538


2016/17 165,270,504,441 0.6865 113,456,027 6,450,806 8,823,167 128,730,000 41,837,250 35,400,750


2017/18 171,881,324,619 0.7165 123,160,883 5,450,806 5,073,753 133,685,442 43,447,769 36,763,497


2018/19 177,037,764,357 0.7050 124,805,666 4,350,806 6,219,403 135,375,875 43,997,159 37,228,366


2019/20 182,348,897,288 0.6932 126,409,791 4,350,806 6,304,310 137,064,907 44,546,095 37,692,849


2020/21 187,819,364,207 0.6816 128,015,292 4,350,806 6,388,563 138,754,661 45,095,265 38,157,532


Revenues FY 2015/2016 FY 2016/2017 FY 2017/2018 FY 2018/2019 FY 2019/2020 FY 2020/2021


Ad valorem Taxes 102,176,959          113,456,027                   123,160,883          124,805,666          126,409,791          128,015,292


Grant Income 3,880,806               3,880,806                       3,880,806               3,880,806               3,880,806               3,880,806


Head Start Revenue 3,100,000               2,100,000                       1,100,000               ‐                               ‐                               ‐                           


Interest Income 300,000                  300,000                          300,000                   300,000                   300,000                   300,000


Other Income 170,000                  170,000                          170,000                   170,000                   170,000                   170,000


Cash Balances Brought Forward 14,843,281             8,823,167                       5,073,753               6,219,403               6,304,310               6,388,563


Total 124,471,046         128,730,000                   133,685,442          135,375,875          137,064,907          138,754,661


Expenditures


Personnel 12,227,415             12,281,098                     13,001,656             13,388,776             13,775,896             14,163,017


Travel 251,130                  221,950                          251,130                   251,130                   251,130                   251,130


Building Space 724,001                  682,000                          702,460                   723,534                   745,240                   767,597              


Communications 74,600                    72,600                             72,600                     72,600                     72,600                     72,600                 


Printing & Supplies 229,001                  200,400                          200,400                   200,400                   200,400                   200,400              


Other Expenses 1,607,340               1,371,320                       1,371,320               1,371,320               1,371,320               1,371,320          


Capital Expenses 250,000                  250,000                          250,000                   250,000                   250,000                   250,000              


Non‐Operating Expenses 2,801,919               2,859,056                       2,859,056               2,859,056               2,859,056               2,859,056          


Children's Programs  and Initiatives 100,696,792          104,618,776                   108,318,776          109,518,776          110,718,776          111,918,776      


Contingency 500,000                  500,000                          500,000                   500,000                   500,000                   500,000


Reserve for Uncollectible Tax 5,108,848               5,672,800                       6,158,044               6,240,283               6,320,490               6,400,765          


Total 124,471,046         128,730,000                   133,685,442          135,375,875          137,064,907          138,754,661


Items included in projection: Promotional increases in salaries (.5%) Capital ‐ new computers 16/17


Added 10% health insurance increase Programs based on projection plus cost drivers of 3% salary increase and 10% health insurance increase


Merit increases in salaries (3%) Policy briefs subject to Council approval


8







CHILDREN’S SERVICES COUNCIL – FINANCE COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 
April 28, 2016 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  4 


 


TITLE:  Proposed 2016/2017 Annual Budget 
 


CSC STAFF:  Bill Cosgrove, Chief Financial Officer 
Jennifer Diehl, Controller 


 


SUMMARY: 
 


In addition to the notes to the budget, this budget incorporates the goals, strategies and 
outcomes to be presented at the Annual Council Planning Session on April 28, 2016. 


 
Ad valorem tax revenue to support the proposed budget amounts to $113,456,027 which is 
based on a projected 8% increase in the total tax base within Palm Beach County.  The 
proposed millage rate will be .6865 compared to the prior year millage rate of .6677. 


 


The proposed 2016‐2017 CSC Annual Budget is submitted reflecting the budget of the 
Children’s Services Council including its special revenue fund, which is also known as Prevention 
Partnerships for Children, Inc. The total proposed expenditures are $128,730,000. 


 
Of the total proposed $128,730,000, Children’s Programs Direct Services are budgeted for 
$104,618,776 or 81.27% and Program Administrative Support is budgeted for $9,636,734 or 
7.49% for a combined total of $114,255,510 or 88.76% of the total budget.  The Children’s 
Programs Direct Services budget reflects a 3.89% or $3,921,984 increase from 2015/2016.  This 
increase is attributed to supporting needed growth and newly identified community needs.  The 
Program Administrative Support budget reflects a 1.38% or $134,607 decrease which relates to 
an annually revised general and administrative allocation. 


 
The proposed budget for the administrative costs of the Council is $5,192,634 representing a 
2.8% or $149,512 decrease over the 2015/2016 budget.  This decrease reflects the 
annually revised general and administrative allocation as well as decreased consulting and 
computer maintenance expenses.  The proposed budget for capital expenses is $250,000, 
representing the same amount as the prior year. 


 
The budget being proposed contains a projected 10% increase over the 2015/2016 health 
insurance premiums, a 3% total merit pool in correlation with staff performance evaluations 
and .5% total pool in relation to promotional increases. 


 
RECOMMENDATION: We recommend the Finance Committee and Council approve the 
proposed 2016/2017 Annual Budget. 


9







CHILDREN'S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY


PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET


OCTOBER 1, 2016 ‐ SEPTEMBER 30, 2017


2015/16 2016/17 INCREASE %
APPROVED 


BUDGET
PROPOSED 


BUDGET
(DECREASE) 
DIFFERENCE


INCREASE 
(DECREASE)


REVENUES


AD VALOREM TAXES 102,176,959$              113,456,027$           11,279,068$      11.04%


GRANT INCOME


   Palm Beach County Head Start Match 3,100,000                    2,100,000                 (1,000,000)         -32.26%


   JPB Foundation 250,000                       250,000                    -                         100.00%


   Department of Health/Agency for Health Care Administration 3,630,806                    3,630,806                 -                         0.00%


          Sub-Total Grant Income 6,980,806                    5,980,806                 (1,000,000)         -14.32%


INTEREST INCOME 300,000                       300,000                    -                         0.00%


INCOME FROM TENANTS 70,000                         70,000                      -                         0.00%


OTHER INCOME 100,000                       100,000                    -                         0.00%


CASH BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD 14,843,281                  8,823,167                 (6,020,114)         -40.56%


TOTAL 124,471,046$              128,730,000$           4,258,954$        3.42%


EXPENDITURES


CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS


   Direct Services 100,696,792$              104,618,776$           3,921,984$        3.89%


   Support Services 9,771,341                    9,636,734                 (134,607)            -1.38%


     Sub-Total Children's Programs 110,468,133                114,255,510             3,787,377          3.43%


ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 5,342,146                    5,192,634                 (149,512)            -2.80%


CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 250,000                       250,000                    -                         0.00%


NON OPERATING EXPENSES


   Palm Beach County Property 


         Appraiser Fees 772,645                       772,645                    -                         0.00%


   Palm Beach County Tax Collector Fees 2,029,274                    2,086,411                 57,137               2.82%


   Sub-Total 2,801,919                    2,859,056                 57,137               2.04%


CONTINGENCY 500,000                       500,000                    -                         0.00%


SUB-TOTAL EXPENDITURES 119,362,198                123,057,200             3,695,002          3.10%


RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTABLE TAX 5,108,848                    5,672,800                 563,952             11.04%


TOTAL 124,471,046$              128,730,000$           4,258,954$        3.42%


PROPOSED MILLAGE RATE:  0.6865


10







CHILDREN'S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY


PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET


OCTOBER 1, 2016 ‐ SEPTEMBER 30, 2017


REVENUES


AD VALOREM TAXES 113,456,027$         89.98% ‐                             0.00% 113,456,027$         88.13%


GRANT INCOME


     Palm Beach County Head Start Match 2,100,000               1.67% -                              0.00% 2,100,000               1.63%


     JPB Foundation 250,000                  0.20% -                              0.00% 250,000                  0.19%


     Department of Health/Agency for Health Care Administration 3,630,806               2.88% -                              0.00% 3,630,806               2.82%


          Sub-Total Grant Income 5,980,806               4.74% -                              0.00% 5,980,806               4.65%


INTEREST INCOME 300,000                  0.24% -                              0.00% 300,000                  0.23%


INCOME FROM TENANTS 70,000                    0.06% -                              0.00% 70,000                    0.05%


OTHER INCOME 100,000                  0.08% -                              0.00% 100,000                  0.08%


TRANSFER IN (OUT) (2,641,626)              -2.10% 2,641,626               100.00% -                              0.00%


CASH BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD 8,823,167               7.00% -                              0.00% 8,823,167               6.85%


TOTAL 126,088,374$         99.94% 2,641,626$             100.00% 128,730,000$         100.00%


EXPENDITURES


CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS


     Direct Services


          Program Services 99,897,150$           79.23% 2,641,626$             100.00% 102,538,776$         79.65%


          Special Funds and Other 95,000                    0.08% -                              0.00% 95,000                    0.07%


          Public Education/Awareness 1,985,000               1.57% -                              0.00% 1,985,000               1.54%


               Sub-total Direct Services 101,977,150           80.88% 2,641,626               100.00% 104,618,776           81.27%


     Support Services


          Programmatic Support Expenses 9,636,734               7.64% -                              0.00% 9,636,734               7.49%


               Sub-total Support Services 9,636,734               7.64% -                              0.00% 9,636,734               7.49%


                    Sub-Total Children's Programs 111,613,884           88.52% 2,641,626 100.00% 114,255,510           88.76%


ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 5,192,634               4.12% -                              0.00% 5,192,634               4.03%


CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 250,000                  0.20% -                              0.00% 250,000                  0.19%


NON OPERATING EXPENSES


     Palm Beach County Property Appraiser Fees 772,645                  0.61% -                              0.00% 772,645                  0.60%


     Palm Beach County Tax Collector Fees 2,086,411               1.65% -                              0.00% 2,086,411               1.62%


          Sub-Total Non Operating Expenses 2,859,056               2.27% -                              0.00% 2,859,056               2.22%


CONTINGENCY 500,000                  0.40% -                              0.00% 500,000                  0.39%


SUB-TOTAL EXPENDITURES 120,415,574           95.50% 2,641,626               100.00% 123,057,200           95.59%


RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTABLE TAX 5,672,800               4.50% -                              0.00% 5,672,800               4.41%


TOTAL 126,088,374$         100.00% 2,641,626$             100.00% 128,730,000$         100.00%


MILLAGE RATE:     0.6865


FOR CHILDREN, INC. TOTAL BUDGET


GENERAL FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND


PREVENTION PARTNERSHIPS 2016 - 2017


EXHIBIT III11







CHILDREN'S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY


PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET


OCTOBER 1, 2016 ‐ SEPTEMBER 30, 2017


Executive  Talent &  Finance Program Communications Information  TOTALS
Expenses Administration Operations Services Management


SALARIES 405,538           989,088           1,071,329        3,842,286          629,303                1,007,666            7,945,210           
‐                            


TEMPORARY PERSONNEL ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         15,000              ‐                             ‐                             15,000                 
‐                            


FRINGE BENEFITS ‐                            
   A. FICA 19,411             61,324             66,423             236,474             37,385                  60,442                  481,459               
   B. FICA MED 5,880                14,342             15,534             55,713              9,125                    14,611                  115,205               
   C. FL Unemployment 8,111                19,781             21,427             76,846              12,586                  20,153                  158,904               
   D. Workers' Comp 642                   2,782                3,210                11,556              1,712                    2,354                    22,256                 
   E. Health Plan 86,576             230,527           273,186           1,158,824          172,860                269,923                2,191,896           
   F. Retirement 57,526             152,178           137,541           447,387             75,830                  120,985                991,448               
   G. Long Term Disability 1,200                3,826                3,929                14,506              2,374                    3,624                    29,459                 
   H. Tuition Reimbursement 65,000             ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             65,000                 
   J. Retirement Health Savings 3,355                14,540             16,777             60,397              8,948                    12,303                  116,321               
   K. Short Term Disability 972                   3,176                3,258                11,784              1,964                    2,988                    24,141                 
   L. Other Fringe Benefits 3,600                15,600             18,000             64,800              9,600                    13,200                  124,800               
Total Fringe Benefits 187,273           583,076           559,284           2,138,288          332,384                520,583                4,320,888           


TOTAL PERSONNEL 592,811           1,572,165        1,630,612        5,995,574          961,687                1,528,249            12,281,098         


TRAVEL
   A. Local Mileage 1,500                200                   1,850                5,500                 3,000                    400                       12,450                 
   B. Staff Development / CSC Business‐Related Travel 12,000             35,000             27,500             100,000             18,000                  12,000                  204,500               
   C. Council Member Travel 2,000                ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             2,000                   
   D. Business Expense 3,000                ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             3,000                   
TOTAL TRAVEL 18,500             35,200             29,350             105,500             21,000                  12,400                  221,950               


BUILDING SPACE
   A. Maintenance & Security 11,538             49,999             57,693             207,693             30,769                  42,308                  400,000               
   B. Utilities 4,615                20,001             23,077             83,076              12,308                  16,923                  160,000               
   C. Emergency Maintenance Fund 1,442                6,250                7,211                25,963              3,846                    5,288                    50,000                 
   D. Quantum Park Fees and Assessments 346                   1,499                1,731                6,232                 923                       1,269                    12,000                 
   E. Real Estate Taxes Quantum Park 1,731                7,500                8,653                31,155              4,615                    6,346                    60,000                 
TOTAL BUILDING SPACE 19,672             85,249             98,365             354,119             52,461                  72,134                  682,000               


COMMUNICATIONS
   A. Telecommunications 1,442                6,250                7,211                25,963              3,846                    5,288                    50,000                 
   B. Postage ‐                        ‐                        15,000             ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             15,000                 
       2015 Tax Notices ‐                        7,600                ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             7,600                   
       Total Postage ‐                        ‐                        22,600             ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             22,600                 
TOTAL COMMUNICATIONS 1,442                6,250                29,811             25,963              3,846                    5,288                    72,600                 


PRINTING & SUPPLIES
   A. Supplies 1,154                5,001                5,769                20,768              3,077                    4,231                    40,000                 
   B. Meeting Supplies 1,400                5,200                300                   5,000                 750                       200                       12,850                 
   C. Computer Supplies ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             20,000                  20,000                 
   D. Printing  100                   250                   350                   1,750                 75,000                  100                       77,550                 
   E. Photography/Video ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         50,000                  ‐                             50,000                 
TOTAL PRINTING & SUPPLIES 2,654                10,451             6,419                27,518              128,827                24,531                  200,400               


OTHER EXPENSES
   A. Purchase of Service


12







CHILDREN'S SERVICES COUNCIL OF PALM BEACH COUNTY


PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET


OCTOBER 1, 2016 ‐ SEPTEMBER 30, 2017


Executive  Talent &  Finance Program Communications Information  TOTALS
Expenses Administration Operations Services Management


       1. Legal 35,000             ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             35,000                 
       2. Audit ‐                        60,400             ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             60,400                 
       3. Consulting 10,000             50,000             ‐                         200,000             25,000                  25,000                  310,000               
       4. Inspector General Fee 86,710             86,709             ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             173,419               
   B. Insurance 220,000           ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             220,000               
   C. Staff Development ‐ In House 50,000             ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             50,000                 
   D. Dues 130,000           6,800                2,700                5,000                 2,000                    500                       147,000               
   E. Background Checks/Fingerprinting 2,000                ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             2,000                   
   F. Subscrip/Publications 2,000                14,700             1,600                2,000                 2,200                    500                       23,000                 
   G. Public Notices & Employment Ads 12,000             ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             12,000                 
   H. Copier Equipment 1,442                6,250                7,211                25,964              3,846                    5,288                    50,001                 
   I. Computer Maint & Support ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             260,000                260,000               
  K. Banking Services ‐                        ‐                        5,000                ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             5,000                   
  L. Investment Advisory Services ‐                        ‐                        20,000             ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             20,000                 
  L. Service Awards & Recognition 3,500                ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             3,500                   
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 398,442           231,960           183,620           232,964             33,046                  291,288                1,371,320           
 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1,033,521        1,941,275        1,978,177        6,741,638          1,200,867            1,933,890            14,829,368         


CAPITAL EXPENSES
  A. Computer Hardware ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             250,000                250,000               
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             250,000                250,000               


NON OPERATING EXPENSES
  A. Property Appraiser Fee 772,645           ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             772,645               
  B. Tax Collector Fee 2,086,411        ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             2,086,411           
TOTAL NON‐OPERATING EXPENSES 2,859,056        2,859,056           


ALLOCATIONS CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS AND SPECIAL SERVICES


  A. Direct Funded Programs and Initiatives ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         99,897,150        ‐                             ‐                             99,897,150         
  B. Healthy Safe & Strong Fund ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         50,000                  ‐                             50,000                 
  C. Lobbying/Legislative Issues ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         45,000                  ‐                             45,000                 
  D. Public Education ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         50,000              1,935,000            ‐                             1,985,000           
TOTAL ALLOCATIONS CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS AND SPECIAL SERVICES ‐                        ‐                        ‐                         99,947,150        2,030,000            ‐                             101,977,150       


CONTINGENCY 500,000           500,000               


RESERVE FOR UNCOLLECTABLE TAX 5,672,800        ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             5,672,800           


TOTAL BUDGET 10,065,377      1,941,275        1,978,177        106,688,788      3,230,867            2,183,890            126,088,374       


Budget: Administrative Expenses 1,033,521        1,703,902        875,487           353,672             646,173                579,878                5,192,634           
Budget: Capital Expenses ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             250,000                250,000               
Budget: Children's Program:  Direct Services ‐                        ‐                         99,947,150        2,030,000            ‐                             101,977,150       
Budget: Children's Program: Support Services 237,372           1,102,690        6,387,966          554,694                1,354,012            9,636,734           
Budget: Non‐Operating Expenses 9,031,856        ‐                        ‐                         ‐                         ‐                             ‐                             9,031,856           


TOTAL BUDGET 10,065,377      1,941,275        1,978,177        106,688,788      3,230,867            2,183,890            126,088,374       


13







Children’s Services Council
Notes to 2016/17 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 


 


 


1.   Breakdown of Divisions/Departments 
 
 


The budget is developed reflecting the functional and program operations within 


CSC.  The functional and program operations as they appear on the detailed 


budget document are: 


A.  Executive Administration - reflects the costs associated with the CEO 


function and administration of the Children's Services Council, such as legal 


fees, insurance, non- operating expenses for the Property Appraiser and Tax 


Collector and organizational consultants. 


B.  Talent & Operations - consists of the Operations, Human Resources, Project 


Management and Talent Management departments. 


C.  Finance - Consists of the Accounting, Budget Oversight and Audit departments. 
 


D.  Program Services - Reflects the costs associated with the funded ch i ld ren’s  


programs and initiatives.  In addition to funding from ad-valorem tax revenue there 


is financial support from the Department of Health and the Agency for Health 


Care Administrat ion through the Healthy Start Coalition as well as from the 


Palm Beach County Head Start Match. 


E.   Communications- Reflects the costs associated with the Communications department. 
 


F.   Information Management- Reflects the costs associated with the Information   


Management department and Information Technology. 


 
2.   Personnel 


 
 


 The proposed 2016/17 fiscal year budget contains funding for 104 approved positions, a 


3% merit pool in correlation with staff performance evaluations and .5% for promotional 


increases. 


 Fringe benefits are calculated at existing rates for FICA, Medicare and Florida 
Unemployment. 


 
 Retirement is calculated at 10% of eligible salaries for employees hired on or after 


January 1, 2012. This percentage is based on the maximum exposure if a match is made 


depending on the employee’s contribution. Prior to a hiring date of January 1, 2012, 


retirement is calculated at 13% of eligible salaries for employees employed ten years or 


14







Children’s Services Council
Notes to 2016/17 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 


 


less, 15% of eligible salaries for employees employed between eleven and fifteen years, 


17% for employees employed between sixteen and twenty years, and 19% for 


employees employed twenty years or more. 


 Workers' Compensation is calculated based on the formula supplied by CSC's insurance 
broker. 


 
 Based on input from CSC's insurance broker and historical trends, health plan 


premiums have been projected at 10% over 2015/16 fiscal year rates to maintain 


coverage at existing levels. 


 Long Term Disability premiums are projected based on the rate that was provided by the 
carrier. 


 
 Tuition reimbursements have been estimated based on anticipated usage for the 


2016/17 fiscal year. 


 Retirement Health Savings reflects the estimated amount needed for this benefit. 
 


 Other Fringe Benefits provides for enhancements or additions to the current benefit 


package offered by CSC and supports health related items. 


 
3.   Travel 


 
 The local mileage reimbursement rate is projected at $0.54 per mile based on the 


Internal Revenue Service standard mileage rate for 2016. The mileage traveled for 


each position has been projected based on historical data. 


 Staff Development / CSC business-related travel - Staff development reflects the 


expenses associated with CSC staff achieving their development plans. CSC 


business-related travel reflects the costs associated with CSC staff traveling on CSC 


related business. An amount has also been budgeted to provide for the costs of staff 


attendance at business meetings taking place outside of Palm Beach County. 


 Council member travel is included to cover the costs relating to travel by Council 
members on CSC related business. 


 
 
4.   Building Space 


 
 Amounts have been budgeted for Maintenance and Security based on contracts that 


have been entered into for those services at the 2300 High Ridge Road building as 


well as actual expenditures incurred through the normal operation of the building. An 


additional $50,000 is budgeted to provide for emergency repairs not covered under 


15







Children’s Services Council
Notes to 2016/17 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 


 


maintenance agreements. The amount budgeted is allocated by department based on 


the number of full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. 


 Utilities are based on projected actual usage and historical data. The amount 


budgeted is allocated by department based on the number of full-time equivalent 


(FTE) employees. 


 Quantum Park fees cover the costs charged by the Quantum Park Association. The 


amount budgeted is allocated by department based on the number of full-time 


equivalent (FTE) employees. 


 
5.   Communications 


 
 Telecommunication expenses are budgeted based on amounts being billed by various 


vendors for this item and reflect the costs associated with all telecommunication 


related expenses. The amount budgeted is allocated by department based on the 


number of full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. 


 Postage includes the costs for routine mailings as well as amounts projected for costs 


associated with the mailing of special reports and newsletters produced by CSC.  


 The cost of mailing the 2016 tax notices has been included as expenditure in 


conformity with legislation which requires each taxing authority to reimburse the 


tax collector for their proportionate share of postage. 


 
6.   Printing & Supplies 


 
 The anticipated costs for these items are based on planned expenditures, historical 


information, and projected price increases. Supplies includes anything related to 


office supplies, program supplies, meeting supplies, training supplies and/or computer 


supplies. 


 Printing reflects the projected costs of producing various reports and newsletters.  


 Photography/video costs are expenses associated with the communications department 


and the public education of program services. 


 
7.   Other Expenses 


 
 Legal expenses reflect “not to exceed” amounts of contracts with outside counsel, if 


needed to assist with issues resulting from CSC's operations. 
 


 Audit reflects the projected amounts for the annual audit. 


16







Children’s Services Council
Notes to 2016/17 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 


 


 
 Consulting has been budgeted under various divisions as follows: 


o Executive Administration – Consultants may be used to provide 
consulting services related to public policy issues. 


o Talent & Operations - Consultants may be used for leadership and 


organizational learning services as well as for administrative 


services related to the facilities. 


o Program Services – Research consultants will be engaged to do 


research as it relates to cost benefit analysis and special projects. 


Consultants may be used for evidence-based trainings and the 


variety of other training programs offered by CSC. Consultants are 


engaged to provide feedback as to the feasibility of bringing 


evidence-based programs to Palm Beach County as well as to 


assist in the evaluation of initiatives. 


o Communications - Consultants may be used to assist 


Communications in the use of translation services. 


o Information Management - Consultants may be used to assist 


Information Management in the maintenance and training of 


various databases and the equipment necessary to maintain these 


programs. 


The following are descriptions of the other items budgeted under the "Other Expenses" cost 
category: 


 
 The Inspector General fee is a charge for the Inspector General to review CSC’s 


policies and procedures. 


 Insurance is made up of expenses related to non-benefit insurance premiums. 
 


 Staff Development is budgeted to cover the costs associated with training activities 


designed to enhance CSC staff knowledge and skills to support funded programs. 


 Dues reflect the costs of memberships to various organizations to which CSC belongs. 
 


 Background checks/fingerprinting are made up of background checks and 


fingerprinting expenses related to employees. 


 Subscriptions & Publications reflect the costs of various "trade" magazines, journals, 


curriculums, videos, and books. 


 Public Notices and Employment Advertising include the cost of required 


advertising for public meetings and other CSC activities as well as costs associated 


17







Children’s Services Council
Notes to 2016/17 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 


 


with recruitment of CSC staff positions. 


 Copier equipment reflects the cost of maintaining and leasing CSC's copier 


equipment. The amount budgeted is allocated by department based on the number of 


full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. 


 Computer maintenance and support is provided to cover the costs of support for various 


software programs as well as the repair of the system for those items no longer covered 


by the manufacturer's warranty period. 


 Banking services and Investment Advisory services cover the costs of bank, credit card 


and investment advisory fees. 


 Service Awards and Recognition cover the costs associated with awards and recognition 


to individuals and/or groups for their accomplishments and contributions to the work of 


the Children’s Services Council. 


 
8.   Capital Expenditures 


 
Capital Expenditures generally reflect the costs associated with the purchase or upgrade 


of furniture and equipment items and the costs of replacing and increasing CSC's 


information and data processing technology. The costs associated with these items are 


$250,000 for computer hardware.   


 
9.   Non-operating expenses 


 
These expenses have been calculated based on the proposed millage rate for the Tax 


 
Collector and the estimated fee provided by the Property Appraiser. 


 
 
10. Allocations 


 
The total proposed allocation to children's programs and initiatives is $104,618,776. 


 
11. Contingencies 


 
An amount totaling $500,000 has been budgeted. 


 
12. Reserve for Uncollectable Tax 


 
A 5% reserve has been established to provide for the projected difference in the amount of 


tax levied and the amount actually collected. 


 
13. Ad Valorem Tax 


 


18







Children’s Services Council
Notes to 2016/17 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget 


 


Revenue is calculated based on a projected estimate of taxable value which reflects an 


estimated 8% increase in the taxable value from the previous year. The millage rate is .6865 


compared to .6677 in the prior year. 


 
14. Grant Income 


 
Grant income is budgeted to reflect grant income from Federal and State dollars through 


the Department of Health and Agency of Health Care Administration through the Healthy 


Start Coalition to support CSC's operation of several Healthy Beginnings programs. 


 
15. Other income 


 
Other income reflects the revenues to be generated from tenant income and miscellaneous 
revenue. 


 
 
16. Interest income 


 
Interest income is projected based on current interest rate trends applied to average 


invested balances. 


19





		Finance Committee Agenda 4/28/16

		Agenda Item #1 - Minutes 3/31/16

		Agenda Item #2 - Financial Statements 3/31/16

		Agenda Item #3

		Agenda Item #4

		Proposed 16/17 Budget

		Notes to proposed 16/17 Budget













